

1 Katharine Chao (CA State Bar No. 247571)
OLIVIER SCHREIBER & CHAO LLP
2 201 Filbert St., Ste. 201
San Francisco, CA 94133
3 Tel. 415-484-0980
Email: kathy@osclegal.com

4 Attorneys for Plaintiff

5
6
7 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
8 FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
9

10 LARRY HOUSTON, an individual,

11
12 Plaintiff,

13
14 v.

15
16 FOSTER DAIRY FARMS, a California
corporation, and CRYSTAL CREAMERY,
17 INC., a California corporation,
18

19 Defendants.
20

Case No.

**COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF**

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

21 **INTRODUCTION**
22

23 1. Plaintiff Larry Houston (“Plaintiff” or “Mr. Houston”) brings this action against
24 Defendants for employment discrimination and retaliation in violation of Title VII of the Civil
25 Rights Act of 1964 (“Title VII”), 42 U.S.C. §§2000e, *et seq.*, the Age Discrimination in
26 Employment Act (“ADEA”), 29 U.S.C. § 621 *et seq.*, and the California Fair Employment and
27
28

1 Housing Act (“FEHA”), Cal. Gov’t Code §§ 12900, *et seq.* Despite Plaintiff’s superior
2 qualifications and experience, Defendants’ adverse treatment of Plaintiff because he is an older
3 African-American employee resulted in Defendants’ discriminatory refusal to promote Plaintiff
4 to the Director of Transportation position.

5
6 **PARTIES**

7
8 2. Plaintiff is a citizen of the State of California. Plaintiff is an African-American
9 man who was more than 40 years of age at all relevant times. At all relevant times, Plaintiff
10 was employed by and performed work for Defendants as a Depot Branch Manager in Hayward,
11 California, the County of Alameda.

12 3. Defendant Foster Dairy Farms (“Foster Farms”) is a for-profit California
13 corporation with its principal place of business in Modesto, California, the County of
14 Stanislaus. Foster Farms is engaged in the business of producing and distributing food dairy
15 products.

16
17 4. Defendant Crystal Creamery, Inc. (“Crystal Creamery”) is a for-profit California
18 Corporation with its principal place of business in Modesto, California, the County of
19 Stanislaus. Crystal Creamery is engaged in the business of producing and distributing food
20 dairy products.

21 5. Foster Farms and Crystal Creamery are collectively referred to herein as
22 “Defendants.”

23
24 6. Defendants, and each of them, were employers within the meaning of Title VII,
25 the ADEA, and the FEHA.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

7. This Complaint seeks damages for violations of the civil rights, privileges, and immunities guaranteed by Title VII, the ADEA, as well as California state law.

8. This Court has jurisdiction over this lawsuit pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331. This Court has jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s state law claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367, as these claims arise out of the same case or controversy.

9. Plaintiff’s claims arose in the County of Alameda, California. Venue therefore lies in the Northern District of California pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2). Pursuant to Civil Local Rule 3-2(d), this action shall be assigned to the San Francisco Division or the Oakland Division.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

10. In or around November 2008, Plaintiff began working in Defendants’ transportation department as a Depot Branch Manager in Hayward, California.

11. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and thereupon alleges, that in the over half century Defendants have been in business, no African-American has ever held the Director of Transportation role. Plaintiff is further informed and believes, and thereupon alleges, that he is only one of two African-Americans ever hired into a manager role in Defendants’ history.

12. As a Depot Branch Manager, Plaintiff reports to the Director of Transportation. During the entirety of Plaintiff’s employment, the Director of Transportation position has been held by a Caucasian man, most of whom Plaintiff is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, were younger than Plaintiff.

13. At all relevant times, Plaintiff has performed the duties of the Depot Branch

1 Manager in Hayward satisfactorily.

2 14. Throughout his employment with Defendants, Plaintiff has received positive
3 performance reviews.

4 15. Over the years, whenever the Director of Transportation position became open,
5 Defendants have repeatedly failed to promote Plaintiff to Director of Transportation in favor of
6 less qualified Caucasian candidates and younger candidates. Defendants also failed to post the
7 position so that interested employees such as Plaintiff could apply.
8

9 16. For example, in or around 2012, a younger Caucasian employee, Colby Bell, was
10 promoted to the position of Director of Transportation without the position being posted.
11 Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon alleges, that company policy at the time
12 required Defendants to post the open position.
13

14 17. Mr. Bell lasted in the Director of Transportation position until around March
15 2014.

16 18. In or around April 2014, Plaintiff learned that Defendants had promoted Doug
17 Peterson, a younger Caucasian man, into the position of Director of Transportation (to replace
18 Colby Bell). Defendants did not post the job before promoting Mr. Peterson. Plaintiff is
19 informed and believes, and based thereon alleges, that company policy at the time required
20 Defendants to post the open position.
21

22 19. Shortly after Mr. Peterson was promoted to Director of Transportation in or
23 around April 2014, Plaintiff contacted Defendants' human resources department to inquire
24 about why the job had not been posted so Plaintiff could have applied and been considered.
25 Plaintiff never received a satisfactory answer.

26 20. On or around May 23, 2017, Plaintiff filed a charge of discrimination with the
27
28

1 Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”), charge no. 555-2017-00504, against
2 Defendants alleging that Defendants were discriminating against Plaintiff on account of his race
3 and age. Plaintiff alleged in his EEOC charge no. 555-2017-00504 that “[o]n or about February
4 7, 2017, Doug Petersen, Director of Transportation, subjected me to disparate treatment and
5 terms of conditions of employment when it [sic] allowed another white, younger Manager to
6 delegate Purchase Orders to his staff but I was not afforded the same opportunity. On or about
7 February 8, 2017, I sent an email to Mr. Petersen, inquiring about this delegation and being held
8 to a different standard but not equally. I also spoke to my HR Manager, but as of today, I have
9 not heard from HR.”

11 21. In a letter to Plaintiff dated July 14, 2017, the EEOC acknowledged receipt of
12 Plaintiff’s charge no. 555-2017-00504, which was dual-filed with the California Department of
13 Fair Employment and Housing (“DFEH”). Plaintiff is informed and believes, and thereupon
14 alleges, that the EEOC furnished a copy of Plaintiff’s charge no. 555-2017-00504 to Defendants
15 sometime in the summer of 2017.

17 22. In or around November 2017, and while his EEOC charge no. 555-2017-00504
18 was still pending at the EEOC, Plaintiff became aware through word of mouth that the position
19 of Director of Transportation was open, and that Defendants had recently interviewed three
20 younger, Caucasian employees for the position. Defendants had not posted the job listing
21 before interviewing for the position. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based thereon
22 alleges, that company policy at the time required Defendants to post the open position.

24 23. Shortly after Plaintiff learned that the position was open and that Defendants were
25 already considering individuals for the position, Plaintiff contacted human resources to ask
26 about the position. The human resources representative informed Plaintiff that she was not sure
27
28

Explore Litigation Insights

Docket Alarm provides insights to develop a more informed litigation strategy and the peace of mind of knowing you're on top of things.

Real-Time Litigation Alerts



Keep your litigation team up-to-date with **real-time alerts** and advanced team management tools built for the enterprise, all while greatly reducing PACER spend.

Our comprehensive service means we can handle Federal, State, and Administrative courts across the country.

Advanced Docket Research



With over 230 million records, Docket Alarm's cloud-native docket research platform finds what other services can't. Coverage includes Federal, State, plus PTAB, TTAB, ITC and NLRB decisions, all in one place.

Identify arguments that have been successful in the past with full text, pinpoint searching. Link to case law cited within any court document via Fastcase.

Analytics At Your Fingertips



Learn what happened the last time a particular judge, opposing counsel or company faced cases similar to yours.

Advanced out-of-the-box PTAB and TTAB analytics are always at your fingertips.

API

Docket Alarm offers a powerful API (application programming interface) to developers that want to integrate case filings into their apps.

LAW FIRMS

Build custom dashboards for your attorneys and clients with live data direct from the court.

Automate many repetitive legal tasks like conflict checks, document management, and marketing.

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Litigation and bankruptcy checks for companies and debtors.

E-DISCOVERY AND LEGAL VENDORS

Sync your system to PACER to automate legal marketing.